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Linton, Georgia is a village in Hancock County founded ^fficially on December 13, 
1858 and was built around an academy known as the Washington Institute. The town reached 
its height of prosperity in the 1880,'s but has, in fact, changed in appearance and popu­ 
lation only slightly since that time. Linton is exactly one mile long and has only one 
main street lined with large cedars and oaks. This street is actually secondary route 
787 and has no other official name. Spartans call it the Linton Eoad and Lintonians call 
it the Sparta Road. Even though Linton has no traffic lights and only two stop signs, it 
does have some of the finest examples of mid-nineteenth century architecture in Georgia. 
All of Linton's houses and its two stores face the main street side by side set on large 
plots of land and are shaded by trees planted there in the 1850's.

Entering from the north, the first building on the left is Linton Methodist Church 
a simple, square, weatherboarded structure. The church, built in 1889-1890, has a pitched 
roof with three bays on the front composed of two windows on either side of a double door. 
Also, there are three asymetrical bays along the sides. Plain moldings around the windows 
and simple pilasters along the corners are the only decorative elements.

Continuing south, the first house on the left is known as the Trice House (c.1860). 
It is a small four room structure with a wide hall running down the center. Underneath 
is a basement made of homemade bricks from the kiln of John Trawick, one of the founders 
of Linton. After the Civil War, a Yankee soldier who had passed through Linton during 
Sherman's march to the sea, returned there and lived in this house for several years. 
The plan of the house reflects classical influence in its symmetry, but is a simple raised 
cottage with a hipped roof and shed porch. It has been relatively unaltered except for 
plumbing installation.

In a meadow to the left of the Trice House and setback from the road is the Tanner's 
House, so called because Ezekiel Trice built it for his tanner. It has been renovated 
and altered o^er the past with additions of rooms on the back and probably the porch itself, 
making the line of the pitched roof irregular. The house has a four bay front with two 
separate entrances which lead into two large front rooms. There is no hallway. Behind 
the house stands a small shack which was the original kitchen. It is of peg construction 
with unpainted board and batten.

Just down from the Tan/er's House is a severe Greek Revival House (c.1850), which 
belonged to Dr. John Stone/ a prominent citizen of Linton and an owner of the land around 
Linton since 1837. It has six fluted Doric columns and a wide two story portico extending 
the length of the house. The house has a towering five bay front with the lower pedimented 
windows extending to the floor. The shutters here are all the original ones. Doric 
columns and pilasters frame the trabeated entrance and above this entrance extends a hang­ 
ing balcony leading from the central door on the second floor. Decorative dentils line the 
cornice. The house is unpainted and has had relatively no alteration.

The Slade House and Slade Store marked as numbers five and six on the map date from 
the late 1860's. The Slade House is a simple raised cottage with a four room central hall 
plan. Originally the house had only a small stoop in front, but a porch was added in the 
1950's. The old store has been left unpainted and boarded up for many years.
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Number seven on the map is the Benton Miller House. Mr. Miller was a Captain in the 

Confederate Army and built this house c.1860. After the war, he served as Doorkeeper of 
the Georgia House of Representatives. The house, relatively unaltered, is a central hall 
plan with a small portico held by four posts. The second floor is completely the original. 
It consists of two large rooms with windows extending to the floor. The ceilings curve 
along the outer walls making them slanted.

The Prescott-Stone House built in the late 1850's is very unpretentious but well pre­ 
served. It was originally built with four rooms and a narrow central hall, but in the 
1860's, Dr. R. G. Stone added rooms to accommodate his family. It is built on 
a classical plan with four Doric-like posts along the wide front porch. The house is 
weatherboarded and has wide pine floors on th6 interior.

Further down the street is the Rev. T. J. Adams' House. It is made of handmade brick 
from the kiln of a neighbor, John Trawick and originally, latticed summer houses stood on 
either side of the walk. Transitional in style, the house is Italianate in flavor with 
its cupola and arched doorways, yet its symmetrical plan and columned porches suggest 
classic revival. The transom over the first floor entrance is made of cranberry glass and 
cut with shapes of vines and flowers. The side lights are also cut and frosted but are of 
clear glass.

Continuing down the main street and about 3/4 mile, past Linton city limit, is a house 
built c.1800. It was built long before Linton was founded and is a well preserved example 
of a plantation house. The back and front of the house are built exactly alike with raised 
shed porches, but the door on the back side of the house leads to the two roomed lower 
floor while the front door leads directly to a staircase going to the two rooms above. Two 
chimneys on either side of the house provide fireplaces for all four rooms. The house 
originally had a separate kitchen like the one shown in the photograph, but it was torn 
down. This kitchen was built in the 1920's and is in use today.

Returning to Linton and looking down the opposite side of the street one comes first 
to Penny's House. Almost nothing is known about it, but the house is supposedly a cottage 
built for a slave named Penny. It is unusual with a shingled hipped roof and a decorative 
cornice board. It is of board and batten construction and has a small shed porch which was 
apparently added later.

Down the road from Penny's House is Trawick brother's store built in the 1850's. It 
is a simple, square, weatherboarded structure with a pitched roof and later shed additions 
on either side.

The W. B. Harrison's House listed as number 13 on the map was built c.1900 and was the 
first house in Linton to have electric lights, running water, and an automobile garage. 
It is impressive with its Doric columned porch that reaches around the front and sides of

its block frame. The house is weatherboarded and has a pitched roof, double chimneys, and 
a windowed gable in the attic. A small balcony extends over the porch roof.
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Next along the street is the Womble House (1860's), a square framed house with two 
large gables interrupting the roof line and a wide front porch held with six decorative 
Victorian posts. The entrance is trabeated and the two windows on either side reach to 
the floor. Viewed from the side, it appears the front half of the house including the front 
gables and porch were added on to the original house, probably in the late 1800's.

The Boyer House was built in the 1860's and according to its present appearance was 
probably altered in the 1890's to make it more Victorian than Greek Revival. The upper 
floor is separated from the lower by a string course and is taller and more ornate in de­ 
tail. A trabeated entrance and the four Doric columned balcony on the second floor as 
opposed to the lower floor whose entrance has only side lights and whose porch has posts 
for columns, suggests that the second floor contained the main living rooms. The odd 
construction of the roof over the porch connecting to the balcony shows that perhaps two 
staircases leading from the ground to the second floor formed the original entrance plan. 
The house has a hipped roof and decorative pilasters at its corners.

Next to the Boyer House is the Strange House, a Victorian gingerbread cottage built 
probably in the 1880's. It has a trabeated entrance and large windows on either side which 
extend to the floor. An ornamental bargeboard frames the twin gables and porch cornice. 
Pierced wooden posts and decorative porch railings complete the style. The original house 
was block shaped with four rooms and a central hall.

\s
The last house on the map is the Duggan House, built by Ivey Duggan, a famous educator

and the first person in Georgia to receive a teaching license. The lower floor is made of 
homemade bricks with a large flight of steps ascending to the upper floor which is made of 
wood. The porch, recessed with plastered walls,has three entrances, the center one being 
trabeated. This center entrance originally led into a large room which was used as a 
dining area and study hall for students at the Washington Institute. The interior has 
since been altered but the exterior is still much the same.
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The entire district of Linton, Georgia literally dates from the 19th ce*f€ury (except 
for some four new houses) and its importance during^ tKe years from 1858 ta 1894^/Iay in 
the supervision of two institutions, Washington Institute and the Darien Baptist Church. 
In the mid-19th century preceding the Civil War years, the association of Baptist Churches 
of Baldwin, Hancock, and Washington counties decided they needed a private high school for 
their children that would give them the best possible formal education while teaching them 
the importance of religious training. It was decided that a town and school of ideal con­ 
ditions could be built in an area directly in the center of a triangle formed by Sparta, 
Milledgeville and Sandersville. The Darien Baptist Church was close by in Washington County, 
there were no railroads for miles that would distract the students, and the making or sell­ 
ing of liquor was prohibited within a radius of three miles. Dr. John Stone, a prominent 
physician who came to Georgia from Vermont in 1837, sold this land to the Washington In­ 
stitute in 1857 and the town (named for Linton Stephens) was incorporated in 1858. People 
moved to Linton from surrounding counties and even other states. They were a well-to-do 
and self-sufficent people who built beautiful homes/large enough for themselves and boarding 
students. The houses ranged from stately Classical Revival to Victorian/gingerbread styles.

The town itself was carefully planned along one main street. Twelve original lots, each 
being a city block long and containing several acres of land, were drawn up in the original 
town plat. Small dirt roads were made between the lots and these led down into the fields 
and slave cabins behind the houses. Boys and girls at the Institute studied algebra, 
geometry, trigonomery, Greek, Latin, surveying, calculus, natural philosophy, chemistry, 
moral sciences, rhetoric, and astronomy. But courses in china painting, hair wreaths, and 
embroidery were also taught to the girls. The Washington Institute was famous too for the 
tournaments held there. People were attracted from far and near to see the boys on fine 
horses joust and compete in Olympic-like games.

The Darien Baptist Church kept a firm hand on their newly acquired town. Many members 
were ex-communicated for such things as dancing or playing a musical instrument causing some­ 
one to dance.

After the Civil War, the school continued to thrive, but in 1894 it burned. Its huge 
brass bell which weighed 900 pounds and served as a clock to people for as far as ten miles 
away was found melted in the ruins. After the school burned the town seemed to stop in time. 
It has grown only slightly since the 1890's, but has not really changed in appearance. Its 
original houses still remaining seem to be a tribute to the spirit of a vital people who 
founded Linton.
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VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION
Beginning 800 feet northwest of the Methodist Church, boundaries extend 1,400 feet 
northeast of Federal-aid secondary route 787, continuing in a southeasterly direction 
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3/4 mile and terminates 110 feet north of route 787. The southern boundary beginning 
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4,800 feet to a point 800 feet south of route 787. The boundary then extends northeast 
for 4,250 feet terminating at a point 800 feet south of route 787. These boundaries 
have been set to include late 18th century cemeteries and most of the surrounding 
acreage that was part of the original town plat of Linton, Georgia.
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